ey
CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
1424 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030
IN-PERSON

Tuesday, August 26, 2025 at 5:30 p.m.

South Pasadena Public Safety Commission Statement of Civility
As your appointed governing board, we will treat each other, members of the public, and city employees with patience,
civility and courtesy as a model of the same behavior we wish to reflect in South Pasadena for the conduct of all city
business and community participation. The decisions made today will be for the benefit of the South Pasadena
community and not for personal gain.

NOTICE ON PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & ACCESSIBILITY
The South Pasadena Public Safety Commission Meeting will be conducted in-person from the Council
Chambers, Amedee O. “Dick” Richards, Jr., located at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena.

The Public Safety Commission Meeting for August 26, 2025, will be broadcasted via zoom teleconference and
will take place in-person.

To maximize public safety, members of the public may attend and/or participate by the following means:

The Meeting will be available:
e In-person: 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA 91030
e \ia Zoom — Meeting ID: 841 9322 6718
e Zoom Link — https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84193226718

To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public can
observe the meeting via Zoom in one of the methods below:

1. Go to the Zoom website, https://zoom.us.join and enter the Zoom Meeting information; or
2. Click on the following unique Zoom Meeting link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84193226718
3. You may listen to the meeting by calling: +1-669-900-6833 and entering the Zoom Meeting ID

For additional Zoom assistance with telephone audio, you may find your local number at:
https://zoom.us/u/aiXVOTAW?2

CALL TO ORDER Chair Marcos Holguin

ROLL CALL Chair Marcos Holguin
Vice-Chair Charley Lu
Commissioner Bethesda Gee
Commissioner Walter Cervantes
Commissioner Armando Munoz
Commissioner Dr. Stephen Sanko
Commissioner Gabriel Reza

Page 1 of 3



COUNCIL LIAISON: Councilmember Omari Ferguson

PUBLIC COMMENT AND SUGGESTIONS
The City Council welcomes public input. If you would like to comment on an agenda item, members of the
public may participate by means of one of the following options:

Option 1:
Participants will be able to “raise their hand” using the Zoom icon during the meeting, and they will have their
microphone un-muted during comment portions of the agenda to speak for up to 3 minutes per item.

Option 2:

Email public comment(s) to pscpubliccomment@southpasadenaca.gov.

Public Comments received in writing will not be read aloud at the meeting but will be part of the meeting
record. There is no word limit on emailed Public Comment(s). Please make sure to indicate:

1) Agenda item you are submitting public comment on.

2) Submit by no later than 6:00 p.m. August 22, 2025.

NOTE: Pursuant to State law, the Commission may not discuss or take action on issues not on the meeting agenda, except that
members of the Commission or staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by persons exercising public
testimony rights (Government Code Section 54954.2). Staff may be asked to follow up on such items.

1. Public Comment
None.

PRESENTATION

2.  Fire Hazard Severity Zones in Local Response Area
Presentation: Fire Hazard Severity Zones in Local Response Area

3. South Pasadena Police Department: NIBRS Report, June and July 2025
Presentation: NIBRS Report, June and July 2025

ACTION/DISCUSSION

4. Minutes of the Public Safety Commission Reqular Meeting of June 09, 2025
Consideration of the minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of June 09, 2025

INFORMATION REPORTS

None.

COMMUNICATIONS

5. City Council Liaison Communications
None.

Page 2 of 3




6. Staff Liaison Communications

None.

7 ¢ Commissioner Communicaticns
None.

ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC ACCESS TO AGENDA DOCUMENTS
The complete agenda packet may be viewed on the City’s website, www.southpasadenca.gov.

Meeting recordings will be available for public viewing after the meeting. Recordings will be uploaded to the
City’s YouTube Channel no later than the next business day after the meeting. The City's YouTube Channel
may be accessed at: https://www.youtube.com/channel/lUCnR169ohzi1AlewD 6sfwDA/featured

ACCOMMODATIONS
The City of South Pasadena wishes to make all of its public meetings accessible to the public. If special assistance is needed to participate
in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk's Division via e-mail at CityClerk@southpasadenaca.gov or by calling (626) 403-7230. Upon
request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities. Notification at least 48 hours

prior to the meeting will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting (28
CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title I1).

I declare under penalty of perjury that | posted this notice of agenda on the bulletin board in the courtyard of City Hall at
1414 Mission Street, South Pasadena, CA, and the City's website at www.southpasadenaca.qgov on August 22, 2025 as
required by law.

August 21, 2025 4
Date Greg Lloyd, Fire Chief

Page 3 of 3




Public Safety Commission

Agenda Report ITEMNO. 2
DATE: August 26, 2025
TO: Public Safety Commission
FROM: Greg Lloyd, Fire Chief
SUBJECT: Fire Hazard Severity Zones in Local Response Area

Presentation: Fire Hazard Severity Zones in Local Response Area

Attachments:
Fire Hazard Severity Zones in Local Response Area



FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONES IN
LOCAL RESPONSE AREA

GREG LLOYD, FIRE CHIEF




PRESENTATION

Introduction

History of Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ's)
Applicable Government Codes

FHSZ for South Pasadena

CAL FIRE Methodology and its application
Recommendations

Impact

Insurance

Importance



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Good evening Mayor, Council and esteemed staff. I am Fire Chief Greg Lloyd and I am here to present regarding the new Fire Hazard Severity Zone Maps released by the California State Fire Marshal’s Office and recommendations for next steps to identify wildfire hazards within the city.


Regardless of cause, empirical evidence has shown an increase in the frequency, severity and damage of wildfires over the past twenty years. In January of 2025, the Eaton Fire, which occurred within five miles of the City of South Pasadena destroyed 14,021 acres, 9,418 homes and took the lives of 17 people (CALFIRE, 2025). As a result of the increase in fires, the Governor ordered the State Fire Marshal’s Office to research and publish Fire Hazard Severity Zone (FHSZ) Maps for Local Responsibility Areas (LRA’s), which would include municipalities such as South Pasadena. Under this mandate, the State Fire Marshal’s Office utilized the same methodology that they employed for determining FHSZ’s in the State Responsibility Areas (SRA’s). However, the state’s staff chose not to include preliminary input from local agencies during the formation process but rather elected to facilitate any proposed changes under Government Code 51179. 

The FHSZ maps for the Southern California region were released on March 24, 2025. Although the City of South Pasadena did not originally contain any areas deemed “Very High” FHSZ, the new maps contain areas along the western edge of the city, along the Arroyo Seco and western slope of the Monterey Hills now designated as “Very High”. While these maps were developed using accepted methodology, they lacked the local understanding of terrain and fuel loads and are therefore insufficient in addressing the hazards in Monterey Hills. To clearly identify the wildfire hazards to the City and its residents, Fire Department staff proposes adopting an amended map that combines the methodology of the State Fire Marshal’s Office with the local knowledge of Fire Department Staff.



HISTORY OF FHSZ

Resulting from significant fires
1980 Panorama Fire

1991 Tunnel Fire (aka Oakland Hills
fire)

2021 SB63 requires all three zones to \\\\\\\\\m““ ““M\‘ |

R n;.u il
be published !



Presenter
Presentation Notes
FHSZ’s came because of legislation arising out of lessons learned from major wildland fires. In 1980, the Panorama Fire, which began in San Bernardino County and was pushed by strong Santa Ana winds burned 28,800 acres, destroyed 325 structures, and experienced 4 fatalities. In the aftermath, the Governor passed Public Resource Code 4201, which mandated CAL FIRE to develop FHSZ’s in the State Responsibility Areas. Eleven years later, the Tunnel Fire in 1991, which is more widely known as the Oakland Hills Fire, devastated a community that was not previously identified as a hazard zone because it was in a Local Responsibility Area. This fire was significant because it became the deadliest fire to date. Although it only burned 1,520 acres, it destroyed 2,900 structures and was attributed to the death of 25 people. 
This event prompted legislators to adopt AB-337 also known as the “Bates Bill”. This bill mandated the Director of CAL FIRE to assess FHSZ’s in Local Responsibility Areas and make recommendations to the local agencies for “Very High” Fire Hazard Severity Zones.
In 2021, new legislation, Senate Bill 63 (Stern), now requires the adoption of all three FHSZ classes in the Local Responsibility Area. Previously, only the “Very High” FHSZ’s were required for adoption in Local Responsibility Areas. 


Shortly after I arrived in South Pasadena, I was given a tour of the Monterey Hills. I was surprised at the similarities these hills shared with the Oakland Hills. The steep terrain, dense vegetation and narrow roads shared by both of these areas provide significant challenges for fire response.


GOVERNMENT CODES

- Public Resource Code 4202

The State Fire Marshal shall classify lands within State
Responsibility Areas into Fire Hazard Severity Zones. Each
zone shall embrace relatively homogeneous lands and shall
be based on fuel loading, slope, fire weather, and other
relevant factors present, including areas where winds have
been identified by the department as a major cause of wildfire
spread. Encourage questions and provide thoughtful
responses to enhance audience participation Use live polls or
surveys to gather audience opinions, promoting engagement
and making sure the audience feel involved




GOVERNMENT CODES

- Government Code 51178

- The State Fire Marshal shall identify areas in the state as
Moderate, High, and Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones based
on consistent statewide criteria and based on the severity of fire
hazard that is expected to prevail in those areas. Moderate, High,
and Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones shall be based on fuel
loading, slope, fire weather, and other relevant factors including
areas where winds have been identified by the Office of the State
Fire Marshal as a major cause of wildfire spread.




HAZARD MAP NOT A RISK MAP

- Based on the physical conditions that create a
likelihood and expected fire behavior over a 30 to 50-
year period without considering mitigation measures
such as home hardening, recent wildfire, or fuel
reduction on efforts

- Risk deals with the potential damage a fire can do
under existing conditions accounting for mitigation
efforts



Presenter
Presentation Notes
The Fire Hazard Severity Zone map reflects “hazard,” not “risk”. The map is like flood zone maps, where lands are described in terms of the probability level of a particular area being inundated by floodwaters, and not specifically prescriptive impacts. “Hazard” is based on the physical conditions that create a likelihood and expected fire behavior over a 30 to 50-year period without considering mitigation measures such as home hardening, recent wildfire, or fuel reduction efforts. “Risk” is the potential damage a fire can do to the area under existing conditions, accounting for
any modifications such as fuel reduction projects, defensible space, and ignition resistant building construction.


The following is a quote from insurance commissioner Ricardo Lara: For many years, insurance companies have been using wildfire risk models for determining where they will write and renew policies, and how much premium to charge a policyholder -- not the Fire Hazard Severity Zone maps. CAL FIRE’s maps are required by law and their purpose is to drive local planning decisions, not insurance decisions.
Commissioner’s POV: “Let me be clear: The CAL FIRE hazard maps are not used for insurance rates or underwriting decisions. But they will empower communities with more accurate information about the very real hazards we face. The reality is we all need to do more to protect our homes and communities from wildfires. When communities know and understand their risks, they can plan and prepare.”


CAL FIRE METHODOLOGY

Create inputs

* Divide land between wildland and non-

wildland areas

« Wildland criteria - > 200 acres of
contiguous fuel bead

 Non-Wildland - Urban areas,

agricultural, barren land and bodies

of water.

Formula
« Wildland

* Modeling based on topography,
weather conditions, drought, and
fuel type

« Non-Wildland

* Looked at ember cast potential
based on wind and proximity to
adjoining wildland area



Presenter
Presentation Notes
The hazard mapping process incorporates local climate data, fuel loading, slope, fire weather and wind to calculate burn potential in certain areas. The state implemented key data inputs to their model and produced results which they repeated throughout the state.
The first step was to divide wildland from non-wildland areas. Wildland areas were deemed as those lands that are predominantly covered by vegetation. Non-wildland area includes urban, agricultural, barren, water or wetlands. To be considered a wildland area, the minimum size of the continuous fuel bed needed to be at least 200 acres. 
Once these areas were determined, the models were used to predict fire behavior and spread under extreme fuel and weather conditions. The probability of a fire starting was based on fire history from 1991 to 2020. 
On March 25, 2025, Fire Department staff met with members of the CAL FIRE team assigned to this project to review the methodology and express concerns over the modeling. The CAL FIRE team confirmed the methodology based on wildland areas and that non-wildland areas were not necessarily examined by their staff for individual hazards. Rather, non-wildland areas were assessed based on their proximity to wildland areas and the associated ember cast based on historical winds. When asked about the areas within the Monterey Hills and the concerns over the terrain, fuels and density of homes, they deferred to the Fire Department staff’s local knowledge of the hazards and provided information on amending the map under the authority of Government Code 51179.



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA - LOS ANGELES COUNTY

Local Responsibility Area
Fire Hazard Severity Zones

Fire Hazard Severity Zones (FHSZ) in Local Responsibility
Area (LRA), as ldentified by the State Fire Marshal

I very High

As ldentified by the
State Fire Marshal

March 24, 2025

Current version released

3/24/25

Areas within South
Pasadena now designated

as Moderate, High and Very
High


Presenter
Presentation Notes
The following map was released on March 24th of this year. In mid-April the map was published as required by code to the fire department website for public access. Public could also access this map through the state’s website.


MAP A5 ADOPTED BY SPMC 14.1

FIRE HAZARD SEVERITY ZONE

AS ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA Considered ngh Fire Hazard
SPMC 14.1 Severity Zone for several years

Codified in 2022 as part of the
Code Adoption Process
Ord. 2368



Presenter
Presentation Notes
The following map is based on the verbiage taken from the South Pasadena Municipal Code


e

Ky <
fPasadenalPark/Place™

ouﬂ@énﬁ.‘ ¥

NaturelRark

&

R R
" CelBbrationKids

CONCERNS

122 /660 acres within
Monterey Hills not
accounted for



Presenter
Presentation Notes
According to the CAL FIRE methodology, the zones were created based on the ember cast potential from adjacent wildland areas. Based on previous mapping, the Arroyo Seco had been identified as a wildland area as it has greater than 200 acres of contiguous fuels. Using this as the wildland area input and the historically predominant westerly winds, one can follow the logic of the current model. However, there are several smaller areas of contiguous fuel that if ignited provide a significant threat to life and property. For example, the Monterey Hills encompasses 660 acres of land in total but contains 122 acres of vegetation. Of those 122 acres of vegetation, the largest contiguous fuel bed is 50 acres. Of which, 31 acres reside within the City of South Pasadena and the remaining  acres reside within the City of Los Angeles. There are 8 areas of contiguous fuel in excess of 4 acres. These areas do not include fuels that may be present in backyards or adjoining property lines. These areas can also contribute to fuel loads and fire behavior.


REQUIREMENT S

Very High Legal
« Adopt FHSZ by ordinance
Construction
« All new construction must use fire-resistive
materials listed in Chapter 7A of CBC
Defensible Space Clearance
« AB3074 Defensible Space Clearance Zones
» 0-30 feet

« Zero Zone 0-5 feet
Annual Defensible Space Inspections
Real Estate Disclosure
Subdivision Map Disclosure
Safety Element Update



Presenter
Presentation Notes
In January 2020, the State passed AB3074 which would require defensible space zones to be enforced on properties within the Very High FHSZ only for Local Responsibility Areas and includes the High FHSZ in the State Responsibility Areas. The defensible space zones span from 5 to 30 feet from the structure and outline various vegetation requirements. Additionally, an ember-free zone would be required from 0 to 5 feet from the structure. Initially, any combustible materials would not be allowed in this zone, but there is ongoing discussion on this topic and the zero zone requirements may contain exceptions. The law was supposed to go into effect in 2021 but has been delayed. The latest information says that the law will become enforceable in 2026. Any new construction must be compliant at that time, and all existing properties will have until 2029 to come into compliance



REQUIREMENT®S




AB3074 - ZERO CLEARANCE ZONE

Signed into law - January 1, 2023
Goes into affect - January 1, 2026

Key Requirements - Only in Very High FHSZ
« Zero Clearance of combustible materials withing 0-5 feet of buildings
* New Construction compliance - January 1, 2026

 Existing property compliance - January 1, 2029

Details are still in development


Presenter
Presentation Notes
In January 2020, the State passed AB3074 which would require defensible space zones to be enforced on properties within the Very High FHSZ only for Local Responsibility Areas and includes the High FHSZ in the State Responsibility Areas. The defensible space zones span from 5 to 30 feet from the structure and outline various vegetation requirements. Additionally, an ember-free zone would be required from 0 to 5 feet from the structure. Initially, any combustible materials would not be allowed in this zone, but there is ongoing discussion on this topic and the zero zone requirements may contain exceptions. The law was supposed to go into effect in 2021 but has been delayed. The latest information says that the law will become enforceable in 2026. Any new construction must be compliant at that time, and all existing properties will have until 2029 to come into compliance
Overview
Signed into law in 2020; effective January 1, 2026
Amends Public Resources Code Section 4291
Establishes a “Zone 0” (0–5 feet around structures) requirement for defensible space
Key Requirements
Maintain zero clearance of combustible materials within 0–5 feet of buildings
Remove flammable vegetation, mulch, firewood, and other combustibles
Focus on hardening the home ignition zone against embers
Implementation
State law applies in Very High Fire Hazard Severity Zones (VHFHSZ)
CAL FIRE developing regulations and guidelines for defensible space inspections
Compliance may be phased in as local jurisdictions adopt codes
Purpose
Research shows most home ignitions occur from embers within 0–5 feet
Reduces wildfire risk and increases community resilience



LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO HAZARD

Fire Hazard Severity Zones

COMBINED MAP

ED- VERY HIGH FHSZ
ORANGE - HIGH FHSZ
ELLOW - MODERATE FHSZ

v ANGS)
ST ey
= racEa

W (A e



Presenter
Presentation Notes
Integrate the State Fire Marshal’s FHSZ Map into the current High Fire Hazard Severity Zone as designated in the SPMC 14.1. Based on the information obtained through state and county resources as well as local knowledge of the topography, vegetation fuel loads and access challenges within the Monterey Hills, it is city’s decision to extend the borders of the High Fire Hazard Severity Zone to encompass the entire Monterey Hills area. The goal of this designation is to educate the residents of the area about the wildfire hazard, provide them information on fire resistant building materials for use in remodeling projects and increase their level of preparedness for a potential wildfire incident in the area


1. Building Materials

2. Defensible Space Inspection requirements

IMPACT OF VERY 1. High - 100" defensible space
HIGH AND HIGH 2. Very High - 100" defensible space

F H S Z 1. Clearance zones from 5'-30'

2. 0'-5" no combustibles (Zero zone)

3. Real Estate Disclosure

Importance of hardening home against wildfire has a two-

fold benefit
IMPORTANCE - Preserving loss of life and property

Preventing fire spread to adjacent homes


Presenter
Presentation Notes
Two main contributors to structures burning in a wildfire

Ember cast from the wildfire itself
Radiant heat from a nearby structure fire
Fire transitions from a wildfire to multiple structures on fire


QUESTIONS?




Public Safety Commission

Agenda Report ITEMNO. 3
DATE: August 26, 2025
TO: Public Safety Commission
FROM: Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police

Richard Lee, Detective

SUBJECT: South Pasadena Police Department: NIBRS Report, June and
July 2025

Presentation: NIBRS Report: June and July 2025

Attachments:
NIBRS Reports: June and July 2025



South Pasadena Police Department

NIBRS REPORT

June 2025

Prepared by:

Richard Lee, Crime Analyst
Sharae Sandoval, Police Assistant

Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police




2025

NIBRS
OFFENSE May June % Change
Murder/Nonnegiligent
0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Manslaughter
Kidnapping/Abduction 0 2 NOT CALCULABLE
Rape 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Sodomy 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Fondling 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Robbery 0 1 NOT CALCULABLE
Aggravated Assault 3 2 -33%
Simple Assault 11 5 -55%
Intimidation 1 2 100%
Arson 1 1 0%
Extortion/Blackmail 1 0 -100%
Burglary/Breaking and Entering 2 2 0%
Pocket-Picking 1 0 -100%
Purse-Snatching 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Shoplifting 7 7 0%
Theft from Building 6 0 -100%
Theft from Motor Vehicle 7 3 -57%
Theft From Motor Vehicle
: 1 2 100%
Parts/Accessories
All Other Larceny 11 10 -9%
Motor Vehicle Theft 12 6 -50%
Counterfeiting/Forgery 0 1 NOT CALCULABLE
False Pretense/Swindle/ 3 1 67%
Confidence Game
Credit Card/ATM Fraud 2 1 -50%
Impersonation 1 0 -100%
Identity Theft 0 2 NOT CALCULABLE
Embezzlement 0 1 NOT CALCULABLE
Stolen Property Offenses 2 2 0%
Vandalism 8 6 -25%
Drug/Narcotic Violations 9 12 33%
Drug Equipment Violations 6 10 67%
Statutory Rape 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Pornography/Obscene Material 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Weapons Law Violation 1 0 -100%
TOTAL 96 79 -18%




South Pasadena Police Department

NIBRS
June 2025
Arrests
May June % Change
Adult Arrests 43 42 -2%
Juvenile Arrests 0 0 NOT CALC
Citations
May June % Change
Parking 442 326 -26%
Moving 268 136 -49%
Calls for Service
May June % Change
Calls for Service 2,290 2,181 -5%
Traffic Collisions
May June % Change
Fatal 0 0 NOT CALC
901T 6 6 0%
902 17 15 -12%
Hit-and-Run 0 0 NOT CALC
City Property Damage 1 1 0%
Total 24 22 -8%




South Pasadena Police Department

NIBRS REPORT

July 2025

Prepared by:

Richard Lee, Crime Analyst
Sharae Sandoval, Police Assistant

Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police




2025

NIBRS
OFFENSE June July % Change

Murder/Nonnegiligent 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Manslaughter
Kidnapping/Abduction 2 0 -100%
Rape 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Sodomy 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Fondling 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Robbery 1 3 200%
Aggravated Assault 2 8 300%
Simple Assault 5 4 -20%
Intimidation 2 0 -100%
Arson 1 0 -100%
Extortion/Blackmail 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Burglary/Breaking and Entering 2 2 0%
Pocket-Picking 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Purse-Snatching 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Shoplifting 7 10 43%
Theft from Building 0 4 NOT CALCULABLE
Theft from Motor Vehicle 3 9 200%
Theft From Mo.tor Vehicle 5 3 50%
Parts/Accessories
All Other Larceny 10 5 -50%
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 3 -50%
Counterfeiting/Forgery 1 2 100%
FaIse' Pretense/Swindle/ 1 9 200%
Confidence Game
Credit Card/ATM Fraud 1 2 100%
Impersonation 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Identity Theft 2 0 -100%
Embezzlement 1 0 -100%
Stolen Property Offenses 2 2 0%
Vandalism 6 6 0%
Drug/Narcotic Violations 12 7 -42%
Drug Equipment Violations 10 7 -30%
Statutory Rape 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Pornography/Obscene Material 0 0 NOT CALCULABLE
Weapons Law Violation 0 6 NOT CALCULABLE

TOTAL 79 92 16%




South Pasadena Police Department

NIBRS
July 2025
Arrests
June July % Change
Adult Arrests 42 29 -31%
Juvenile Arrests 0 0 NOT CALC
Citations
June July % Change
Parking 326 264 -19%
Moving 136 291 114%
Calls for Service
June July % Change
Calls for Service 2,181 2,453 12%
Traffic Collisions
June July % Change
Fatal 0 0 NOT CALC
901T 6 8 33%
902 15 18 20%
Hit-and-Run 0 8 NOT CALC
City Property Damage 1 0 -100%
Total 22 34 55%




Public Safety Commission

Agenda Report ITEMNO. 4
DATE: August 26, 2025
TO: Public Safety Commission
FROM: Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police

Kevin Tiet, Management Assistant

SUBJECT: Minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of
June 09, 2025

Consideration of the minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of June
09, 2025

Attachments:
A. Minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of June 09, 2025



CITY OF SOUTH PASADENA
VIA HYBRID / IN-PERSON
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
1424 MISSION STREET, SOUTH PASADENA, CA 91030

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Monday, June 09, 2025, at 9:30 a.m.

CALL TO ORDER

The Regular Meeting of the South Pasadena Public Safety Commission was called to order by Chair
Cervantes on Monday, June 09, 2025, at 9:34 a.m. in the Amedee O. “Dick” Richards, Jr. Council
Chambers, located at 1424 Mission Street, South Pasadena, California.

ROLL CALL:

PRESENT Chair Marcos Holguin
Vice-Chair Charley Lu
Commissioner Walter Cervantes
Commissioner Armando Munoz
Commissioner Dr. Stephen Sanko
Commissioner Gabriel Reza

ABSENT Commissioner Bethesda Gee

Kevin Tiet, Management Assistant, announced a quorum.

OFFICIALS PRESENT:

Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police, Merrill Ladenheim, Deputy Chief of Police, Shannon Robledo, Police
Lieutenant, Davit Ghazaryan, Management Analyst, Kevin Tiet, Management Assistant were present at
Roll Call.

OFFICIALS ABSENT:

Greg Lloyd, Fire Chief, Omari Ferguson, Councilmember

COUNCIL LIAISON: Councilmember Omari Ferguson

Page 1 of 3



PUBLIC COMMENT

Public Comment

Yvonne LaRose made a public comment regarding the impact of recent federal orders on public safety,
specifically impacting Los Angeles but with a possibility of affecting South Pasadena as well. She
mentioned that Senator Perez had issued an informational brochure over the weekend regarding
knowing your rights if apprehended by immigration authorities. She indicated that she had posted it on
Facebook and will forward the web link of the brochure to the Public Safety Committee. She mentioned
that “it is said that some of those who are part of ICE are current members of the proud boys who were
part of the insurrection that happened in January 2020”. Mrs. LaRose said that as seen throughout the
history of deportations, ’it's not only focused on Latinos, it's across the board, all populations’. She
indicated that she doesn’t feel safe and that she would like some input ‘on what we are going to do’.
She said that ‘it appears SB 54 is not going to be sufficient’. She mentioned that the National Guard
has been called and so have the Marines and according to her the Marines have the philosophy of “do
what you're told’. Mrs. LaRose said that she is scared, and she would like to know what ‘we need to
do’ and how the Police Department and the first responders will be enforcing ‘our rights and our
protections as we move forward’.

PRESENTATION

Public Works: Tree Ordinance Revision
Presentation of the Tree Ordinance Revision.

Danielle Garcia, Water Conservation Management Analyst and Michael Vartanians, Principal Engineer,
from the Public Works Department presented the Tree Ordinance Revision.

Commissioner Cervantes had a recommendation on the importance of having native trees around for
the environment. He encouraged to have incentives for nurseries in the City to purchase more native
trees. Mrs. Garcia agreed and mentioned that there is currently a water conservation rebate program
for drought tolerant and native trees. Commissioner Sanko seconded the comments of Commissioner
Cervantes and asked what the responsibilities for homeowners are for trees that are located between
a sidewalk and a street. Mrs. Garcia responded that currently it is loosely incorporated in the current
ordinance but with the proposed update it will be clear what the responsibilities are. She said that area
is called the right of way public easement and if a removal of a tree in that area is necessary the City
will cover those costs, but the maintenance of the tree is the responsibility of the property owner.

Commissioner Sanko asked about the fees related to the permitting process and was given that
information. Michael Vartanians provided more information regarding fees related to permitting and
appeals.

Commissioner Munoz asked about diseased trees and property owners’ responsibilities in relation to
the removal of diseased trees. Michael Vartanians responded that with the new ordinance - diseased
or dying trees that pose an imminent threat to life or property - the replacement requirement will be one
tree. Meaning the City will ease the replacement requirements.

Page 2 of 3




Commissioner Reza clarified the information provided regarding the radius of property owners
responsibility. He also asked whether the same permitting process would apply if there is an emergency
high wind event and was told that disasters will trigger expedited paths of permitting.

Chair Holguin asked about the timeline of collaboration with the Fire Department and their feedback.
Danielle Garcia clarified the timelines of receiving feedback and presenting the finalized version to the
City Council on July 16, 2025. Commissioner Sanko also encouraged the staff to get feedback from
Fire Chief Lloyd.

ACTION/DISCUSSION

3. Public Safety Commission: Meeting Times
Consideration of changing meeting times of the upcoming Public Safety Commission Regular Meetings.

Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police, spoke regarding adopting new Public Safety Commission meeting dates
and times and asked Chair Holguin to lead the discussion with other Commissioners on what the best
option would be for them and the public.

The City Council Chambers is available on last Tuesdays of each month and that was proposed as the
new meeting day for Public Safety Commission Regular Meetings. Chair Holguin stated that he’s open
to proposals but one thing to consider would be that Mondays are hard for most Commissioners, and
he mentioned that he’'d prefer evening meeting times.

The new Public Safety Commission Regular Meetings proposed date would be every last Tuesday of
each month at 5:30p.m.

COMMISSION ACTION AND MOTION

A motion was made by Commissioner Reza, seconded by chair Holguin proved by roll call vote,
Item No.3 Public Safety Commission: Meeting Times as presented.

AYES: Chair Holguin, Commissioner Sanko, Commissioner Reza, Commissioner Cervantes,
Commissioner Munoz

NOES: None.

ABSENT: Commissioner Lu, Commissioner Gee

ABSTAINED: None.

Motion passed.

4, Minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of April 14, 2025
Consideration of the minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of April 14, 2025

COMMISSION ACTION AND MOTION

A motion was made by Commissioner Cervantes, seconded by Commissioner Sanko, approved
by roll call vote, Item No.4 the Meeting Minutes of the April 14, 2025 Public Safety Commission
Regular Meeting as presented.

AYES: Chair Holguin, Commissioner Sanko, Commissioner Reza, Commissioner Cervantes

Page 3 of 3



NOES: None.
ABSENT: Commissioner Lu, Commissioner Gee
ABSTAINED: Commissioner Munoz.

Motion passed.

Minutes of the Public Safety Commission Reqular Meeting of May 12, 2025
Consideration of the minutes of the Public Safety Commission Regular Meeting of May 12, 2025

COMMISSION ACTION AND MOTION

A motion was made by Commissioner Cervantes, seconded by Commissioner Reza, approved
by roll call vote, Item No.5 the Meeting Minutes of the May 12, 2025 Public Safety Commission
Regular Meeting as presented.

AYES: Chair Holguin, Commissioner Sanko, Commissioner Reza, Commissioner Cervantes
NOES: None.

ABSENT: Commissioner Lu, Commissioner Gee

ABSTAINED: Commissioner Munoz.

Motion passed.

INFORMATION REPORTS

None.

COMMUNICATIONS

6.

City Council Liaison Communications
None.

Staff Liaison Communications

Brian Solinsky, Chief of Police, advised that the Police Department and the City are very proud of their
diverse heritage of South Pasadena where the rights of all individuals are respected. He indicated that
it's the Police Departments goal that a safe community is provided for all the people that live, work or
travel through South Pasadena. Chief Solinsky added that South Pasadena Police Department (SPPD)
doesn’t enforce immigration laws and that responsibility lies solely with the Federal authorities. He also
mentioned that SPPD officers are currently deployed to the City of Los Angeles, purely for the purpose
of ensuring public safety.

Chief Solinsky provided an update on the Departments staffing levels. He mentioned that the
Department is almost fully staffed, and the recruitment is done to ensure a seamless transition as
Officers retire.

Commissioner Munoz commended the Police Department for being almost fully staffed within two years.

Commissioner Cervantes asked Chief Solinsky for an update regarding new communication towers.
Chief Solinsky responded that there haven’t been any changes so far and that is a long term project but

Page 4 of 3




it is looking promising per Congresswoman Chu’s office. He added that an update is expected by the
end of the summer, and it will be brought to the Commission.

Chair Holguin asked if there is an SPPD departmental police in relation to the Departments stance on
immigration enforcement. Chief Solinsky responded that there is, in addition to the Department following
SB 54, the Department has an internal policy that mimics that law which has been internally and
externally peer reviewed, including by the Public Safety Commission. Chair Holguin asked if the policy
is available for the public to review and was given the instructions on where it is located online on the
Departments website.

Chair Holguin asked about the SPPD police officers’ deployment to a Los Angeles and its impact on
South Pasadena. Chief Solinsky responded that there will be no impact to Officers’ availability to handle
or respond to any calls for service. He added that there is a mutual aid requirement that the Department
sends 50% of its on-duty force anytime mutual aid is requested. Based on the Departments new staffing
levels, SPPD didn’t have to pull from it's current on-duty staff and was able to call Officers that were off.

8. Commissioner Communications
Commissioner Cervantes asked if the Chief of Police and the City’s legal Department, given the current
climate, can provide information to South Pasadena residents on what to do if they are detained by
immigration authorities.

Commissioner Sanko echoed Commissioner Cervantes comments about the current state of fear
immigrants and their family members experience.

Chair Holguin expressed his gratitude to his colleagues for being named Chair during the previous
meeting and thanked Chief Solinsky for being invited to the recent badge pinning ceremony.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further matters, Chair Cervantes adjourned the meeting of the Public Safety Commission
at 10:37 a.m., to the next Regular Public Safety Commission meeting scheduled for Tuesday, August 26,
2025 at 5:30 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted: Approved By:
Kevin Tiet Walter Cervantes
Management Assistant Chair

Page 5 of 3



	FHSZ Presentation for Community.pdf
	Fire hazard severity zones in local response area���Greg Lloyd, fire chief
	presentation
	History of fhsz
	Government Codes
	Government Codes
	Hazard map not a risk map
	CAL FIRE METHODOLOGY
	The power of communication
	Map as adopted by spmc 14.1
	Concerns
	Requirements
	Requirements
	AB3074 – Zero Clearance Zone
	LOCAL AMENDMENTS TO HAZARD MAP
	Impact of very high and high fhsz
	Questions?

	June 2025 NIBRS.pdf
	cover
	NIBRS
	Sheet1

	July 2025 NIBRS.pdf
	cover
	NIBRS
	Sheet1


